
BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation ) 
Against: ) 

) 
) 

HERBERT KLOSS, M.D. ) 
) 

Physician's and Surgeon's ) 
Certificate No. G 59044 ) 

) 
Respondent ) 

Case No. 800-2016-020637 

DECISION 

The attached Stipulated Surrender of Licensee and Order is hereby 
adopted as the Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, State of California. 

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on February 17, 2017 

IT IS SO ORDERED February 13, 2Q17 

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 
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Respondent. 

In the interest of a prompt and speedy settlement of this matter, consistent with the public 

interest and the responsibility of the Medical Board of California of the Depai1ment of Consumer 

Affairs, the pmties hereby agree to the following Stipulated Surrender and Diseiplinary Order 

which will be submitted for approval and adoption as the final disposition of the Accusation. 

PARTIES 

1. · Kimberly Kirchmeyer ("Complainant") is the Executive Director of the Medical 

Board of California ("Board"). She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is 

represented in this matter by Kamala D. Han·is, Attorney General of the State of California, by 

Emily L. Brinkman, Deputy Attorney General. 

2. Herbe1t Kloss, M.D. ("Respondent") is represented in this proceeding by attorney 

Joseph S. Picchi, Esq., whose address is 2300 Contra Costa Boulevard, Suite 350, 

Pleasant Hill, CA 94523-2398. 
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1 3. On or about October 16, 1998, the Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate 

2 No. 059044 to Respondent. The Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect 

3 at all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 800-2016-020637 and is presently 

4 in retired status. 

5 JURISDICTION 

6 4. Accusation No. 800-2016-020637 was filed before the Board and is currently pending 

7 against Respondent. The Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly 

8 served on Respondent on May 17, 2016. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense 

9 contesting the Accusation. A copy of Accusation No. 800-2016-020637 is attached as Exhibit A· 

10 and incorporated by reference. . 

11 ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

12 5. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the 

13 charges and allegations in Accusation No. 80-2016-020637. Respondent also has carefully read, 

14 fully discussed with counsel; and understands the effects of this Stipulated Surrender of License 

15 and Order. 

16 6. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a 

17 hearing mi the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross-examine 

18 the witnesses against him; the right to present.evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right 

19 to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of Witnesses and the production of 

20 documents; the right to reconsideration and cou1t review of an adverse decision; and all other 

21 rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

22 7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

23 every right set forth above. 

24 CULP ABILITY · 

25 8. Respondent understands that the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 800-2016-

26 020637, if proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon his Physician's and 

27 Surgeon's Certificate. 

28 
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1 9. For the purpose ofresolving the Accusation without the expense and uncettainty of 

2 further proceedings, Respondent agrees that, at a hearing, Complainant could establish a factual 

3 basis for the charges in the Accusation and that those charges constitute cause for discipline. 

4 Respondent hereby gives up his right to contest that cause for discipline exists based on those 

5 charges.· 

6 10. Respondent understands that by signing this stipulation he enables the Board to issue 

7 an order accepting the sunender of his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate without further 

8 process.· 

9 RESERVATION 

1 O 11. The admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of this. 

· 11 proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Medical Board of California or other 

12 professional licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or 

13 civil proceeding. 

14 CONTINGENCY 

15 12. .This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondent understands 

16 and agrees that counsel for Complainant and.the staff of the Board may communicate directly 

17 with the Board regarding this stipulation and sunender, without notice to or paiticipation by 

18 Re.spondent or his counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he 

19 may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board 

20 considers and acts upon it. lf the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, 

21 the Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this 

22 paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the paities, and the Board shall not 

23 be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

24 13. The patties understand and agree that Pottable Document Format ("PDF") and 

25 facsimile copies of this Stipulated Sunender of License and Order, including PDF and facsimile 

26 signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals. 

27 14. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that 

28 the Board may, without futther notice or fotmal proceeding, issue and enter the following Order: 
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1 ORDER 

2 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G59044, issued 

3 to Respondent Herbert Kloss, M.D., is surrendered and accepted by the Medical Board of 

4 California. 

5 1. The sun·ender of Respon<!ent' s Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate and the . 

6 acceptance of the surrendered license by the Board shall constitute the imposition of discipline 

7 against Respondent. 1bis stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall become a part 

8 of Respondent's license history with the Medical Board of California. 
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2. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a Physician and Surgeon in 

California as of the effective date of the Board's Decision and Order. 

3·. Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board his pocket license and, if one was 

issued, his wall ce1tificate on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order. 

4. If Respondent ever applies for licensure or petitions for reinstatement in the State of 

14 California, the Board shall treat it .as a new application for licensure. Respondent must comply 

15 with all the laws, regulations and procedures for licensure in effect at the time the application or 

16 petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 800-2016-

17 02063 7 shall be deemed to be trne, correct, and admitted by Respondent when the Boan:\ 

i 8 determines whether to grant or deny the application or petition. 

19 5. If Respondent should ever apply or reapply for a new license or certification or 

20 petition for reinstatement of a license by any other health care licensing agency in the State of 

21 California, ail of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 800-2016-020637 shall 

22 be deemed to be true, correct, and admitted by Respondent for the purpose of any Statement of 

23 Issues or any other proceeding seeking to deny or restrict licensure. 

24 

25 ACCEPTANCE 

26 I have carefolly read the above Stipulated Surrender of License and Order and have fully 

27 discussed it with my attomey, Joseph S. Picchi, Esq. I understand the stipulation and the effect it 

28 will have on my Physician's and Surgeon's Ce1tificate. I enter into this Stipulated Surrender of 
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License and Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the 

Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California. 

4 DATJ;ID: 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

HERBERT KLOSS, M.D. 
Respondent 

I have read and fully discussed with Herbert Kloss, M.D, the tenns and conditions and other 

matters contained in this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order. I approve its fonn and 

content. ~ 
DATED:. 1,h I I)- ~--, 

-1.,7µfJ;-'-+-'------ HSJ>ICCHf, ESQ~ -l 

Attorney for Respondent 

ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby respectfully submitted 

for consideration by the Medical Board of California of the Department of Consumer Affairs. 

Dated: 

SF2016200520 
Kloss.Stip.Surrender2.docx 

Respectfully submitted, 

KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
JANE ZACK SIMON 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

(-' '" 

'JV~~~.(;, 
EMILY L. BRINKMAN 
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys for Complainant 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
JANE ZACK SIMON 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
EMILY L. BRINKMAN 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 219400 

455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 
San Francisco, CA 94102-7004 
Telephone: (415) 703-5742 
Facsimile: (415) 703-5843 
E-mail: Emily .Brinkman@doj.ca.gov 

Attorneys for Complainant 
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BEFORE TJ:IE 
MEDICAL BOARD OJ<' CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

10 

11 In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

12 Herbert Kloss, M.D. 
5057 84th Avenue SE 

13 Mercer Island, WA 98040 

14 Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate 
No. G59044, 

15 
Respondent. 

16 
II-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--' 

17 

18 Complainant alleges: 

Case No. 800-2016-020637 

ACCUSATION 

19 PARTIES 

20 1. Kimberly Kirchmeyer (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official 

21 capacity as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer 

22 Affairs (Board). 

23 2. On or about October 16, 1998, the Medical Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's 

24 Certificate Number G59044 to Herbert Kloss, M.D. (Respondent). The Physician's and Surgeon's 

25 Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will 

26 expire on August 31, 2016, unless renewed. 

27 \\\ 

28 \\\ 
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1 

2 3. 

JURISDICTION 

This Accusation is brought before the Medical Board of California (Board), 1 under 

3 the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions 

4 Code unless otherwise indicated. 

5 4. Section 2227 of the Code provides that a licensee who is found guilty under the 

6 Medical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period not to exceed 

7 one year, placed on probation and required to pay the costs of probation monitoring, or such other 

8 action taken in relation to discipline as the Board deems proper. 

9 5. Section 2305 of the Code states: 

10 "The revocation, suspension, or other discipline, restriction or limitation imposed by 

11 another state upon a license or certificate to practice medicine issued by that state, or the 

12 revocation, suspension, or restriction of the authority to practice medicine by any agency of the 

13 federal government, that would have been grounds for discipline in California of a licensee under 

14 this chapter [Chapter 5, the Medical Practice Act] shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action 

15 for unprofessional conduct against the licensee in this state." 

16 6. Section 141 of the Code states: 

17 "(a) For any licensee holding a license issued by a board under the jurisdiction of the 

18 department, a disciplinary action taken by another state, by any agency of the federal government, 

19 or by another country for any act substantially related to the practice regulated by the California 

20 license, may be a ground for disciplinary action by the respective state licensing board. A 

21 certified copy of the record of the disciplinary action taken against the licensee by another state, 

22 an agency of the federal government, or another country shall be conclusive evidence of the 

23 events related therein. 

24 "(b) Nothing in this section shall preclude a board from applying a specific statutory 

25 provision in the licensing act administered by that board that provides for discipline based upon a 

26 

27 

28 

1 The term "Board" means the Medical Board of California. "Division of Medical 
Quality" or "Division" shall also be deemed to refer to the Board (Bus. & Prof. Code section 
2002). 
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disciplinary action taken against the licensee by another state, an agency of the federal 

government, or another cou11try." 

CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Discipline, Restriction, or Limitation Imposed by Another State) 

7. On February 11, 2016, the Washington Medical Quality Assurance Commission 

(Washington Commission) and Respondent signed a Stipulation to Informal Disposition 

(Stipulation). The Stipulation was entered following allegations connected to Respondent's 

practice as a traveling anesthesiologist. Respondent employed a Nursing Assistant-Registered 

(NAR) lo assist him in providing anesthesia to pediatric dental patients. The Stipulation alleges 

the following: a) Respondent allowed the NAR to provide anesthesia services beyond the scope of 

her credentials (starting and administering IVs, administering intranasal Versed, and monitoring 

patients under anesthesia); b) between December 2011 and December 2012, Respondent 

administered anesthesia to one pediatric patient while another pediatric patient was in recovery 

without monitoring (allowing the patient's parents or the NAR to monitor the patient); c) 

Respondent would leave the operating room when patients were under general anesthesia to take 

telephone calls or use a computer, allowing the NAR to monitor the patient; d) Respondent's 

actions violated an Agreement dated August 20, 2012, in which he agreed to continuous 

monitoring and being physically present and available during the administration of anesthesia. 

8. As part of the Stipulation, Respondent agreed to undergo practice review by the 

Washington Commission, to appear personally before the Washington Commission, attend and 

successfully complete an ethics course, pay $1,000 in cost recovery, and other standard terms and 

conditions. Copies of the Washington Commission's Statement of Allegations and Summary of 

Evidence and Stipulation to Informal Disposition are attached as Exhibit A. 

9. Respondent's conduct and the action of the Washington Commission as set forth in 

paragraphs 7 and 8, above, and within the actual Washington Commission documents attached as 

Exhibit A, constitutes unprofessional conduct within the meaning of section 2305 and conduct 

subject to discipline within the meaning of section 141. 

\II 
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1 PRAYER 

2 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the mailers herein alleged, 

3 and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue a decision: 

4 1. Revoking or suspending Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate Number 059044, 

5 issued to Herbert Kloss, M.D.; 

6 2. Revoking, suspending or denying approval of Herbert Kloss, M.D.'s authority to 

7 supervise physician assistants, pursuant to section 3527 of the Code; 

8 3. Ordering Herbert Kloss, M.D., if placed on probation, to pay the Board the costs of 

9 probation monitoring; and 

10 

11 

4. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

12 DATED: May 17. 2016 
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17 12220739.doc 
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Exocutive Di clor 
Medical Board of California 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
Stale of California 
Complai11a11t 
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Exhibit A 

Washington Medical Quality Assurance Commission Statement of Allegations and 

Summary of Evidence and Stipulation to Informal Discipline 
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STATE OF WASHINGTON 
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of t112 License to Practice 
as a Physician a1d Surgeon of: 

HERBERT KLOSS, MD 
License No. MD08017372 

Respond_ent_. / 

No. M2015-268 

STATEMENT OF ALLEGATIONS 
AND SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE 

---···---

The Executive Director of the Medical Quality Assurance Commission 

(Commission), on designation by t~e Commission, makes the allegations below, which are 

supported by evidence contained in Commission file number 2013-9669. The patient 

referred to in tf'i:; st~tement of Allegations and Summary of Evidence is identified in the 

attached Confic·';·.:ial ;J:hedule. 

1. ALLEGATIONS. 

1. 1 On t.~ay 7, 1979, the state Of Washington issued Respondent a license to 

practice as a physician and surgeon: Respondent is board certified in anesthesiology. 

Respondent's license is currently active. 

1.2 :'.espondcnt provides ariesthesia services for dentists serving pediatric 

patients who require general anesthesia for extensive dental rehabilitation, or who have 

special health care neecls. Respondent provides ambulatory care and travels to the 

dentists' office"·- f'csr;cndent administered anesthesia accompanied only by a Nursing 

Assistarff~ReiJ:s:-.. : 2c (tJAR). · · · -·· -- · · ·· · · ·· -.. · · --· · · 

1.3 Respondent directed and/or approved the NAR whom he employed to 

perform activWe·; !;eyond the scope of her.credentials, including starting and administering 

IVs. administering intranasal Versed (midazolam), and monitoring patients while they were 

u1der anesthes·ci. NARs are ineligible to accep'. delegation to administer medicine by 

injectio~ or mc-•1;tm r:atients at any time while they are _under anesthesia. In addition, 

NA Rs are req1:;·:~:1 t'.l work under the-direction of a Registered Nurse or Lieensed Practical 

Nurse, not a phy::o'•:lJn. 

1.4 '.:.1rng '.'F} period December 2011 through December 2012, Respondent 

frequently acmi·-· ;te:c·; anesthesia to two pediatric patients simultaneously. Respondent 

would have his c! '\R e:•1pioyee or a paiient's parent monitor one of the patients while 

· SOA-REV. 2-01 . 

STATEMENT C- ;._LLC:Gf\TIONS AND_ SUMMJ\.RY t'.7' ~~v 
NO. M2015-268 ; ... frf W, cf.'.'"'· ~, 

. ~im'.•- ~ g :;-
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Respondent W3s in a different room attending to or administering another patient's 

anesthesia, cle~:-,hg equipment, or preparing for a procedure. 

1.5 c:es,..ondent would often leave the operating room (OR) when patients were 

under general anc·:thesia to take telephone calls or to use a computer. During 

Respondent's nbs·'1:es from the OR to perform these tasks, Re.spondent would s1and . . . 

outside the doeor anJ would leave his NAR to monitor the patient. 

1.6 In ~iddition to creating a risk of patient harm, after August 20, 2012, 

Respondent's 8:tions violated an Agreement Respondent had signed with the DeP,artment 

of Socia_I and Health Services on that date in which he agreed to "continuous monitoring of 

the co~rse of c;ch offi:e based anesthesia administration by remaining physically presen_t 

and available fc 'mmCdiate diagnosing and treatment of e!J1ergencies:" 

2. SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE 

2.1 Con.; '.Jint dated November 8, 2013. 

2.2 P.2:pcndent•s·statement with attachments. 

2.3 ff"':~~ re:ords. 

2.4 N:Jit cind investigative reports provided by Washington Health Care 

Authority ar.d \;'.'Jshinr;ton State Attorney General Office. 

3, ALLEGED V!OLATIONS 

................. _ 3.1 . !:'1~-f~~ts_<:l!E)9e~ _in §E)~lio~ 1, if_prov_en'. w~~I~ _c;o~s_tit~t.:_ un~r6'.es_s~~-al ·-· .. 

conduct in vin~;,li,:i: of RCW 18.130.180(4), (7), (10) and WAC 246-841-405(5)(a) which 

provide in part: 

RCW 13.1°,~.180 Unprofessional conduct. The following conduct, act~, 
or conclitici11s constitute unprofessional conduct for any license holder or 
applica11: "' ;Jer the jurisdiction of this chapter: 

(4) lnc0rn~0len~e. negiigence, o_r ma'prac\ice which results in injury to a 
patient or v1hich creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may be harmed. 
The use cf a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not constitute 
unpro'.ess·~nal conduct, provided that it .does not result in injury to a patient 

. or cre81·- "" 1""28Sonable risk that a patient may be harmed . 

. STATEMENTrC'!" ,t.! LEGATla°NS AND SUMMARY DF ~.· Fft ~v 
NO. M201s-2ct ~;'U §'v l' 
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(7) Viola:iJn of any state or federal statute or administrative rule regulating 
the prcfe,,sion in question, including any stst1,1te or rule defining or 
estab:ish:r-;; s'.;indarc!s of patient care or professional conduct or practice. 

(10) Aid:r::i oc '1bet1ing an unlicensed person to practice 1vhen a license is 
required. 

WAC 246-E41-405. Nursing assistant delegation. 

(5) Nur"'n<:! <issistants shall not accept delegation of, or perform, the 
. followir.:i rc.'.sing care tasks: 

(a) Administration of medication by ir.jection, with the exception of insulin 
injectio;·s_ 

4. NOTICE TO RESPONDENT 

4.1 Th'" r.rnrnriss'on has determined that this case may be appropriate for 
. . 

resolution t11rcug!1 a Stipulation to Informal Disposition pursuant to RCW 18.130.172(2). A 

proposed Stipulation to Informal Disposition is attached, which contains the disposition the 

Commission be::2 :.ss is necessary to address the conduct alleged in this Staten:ient of 

Allegations Dnd E :.:mmary ol Evidence. 

4.2 If Respond en'. agrees that the disposition imposed by the Stipulation to 

Informal Dispo~itic:1 is appropriate; Respondent should sign and .date the· StipUlatioffto · 

·Informal Dispositic•n and return it within fourteen. (14) days to the Medical Quality 

A.ssurance Comr.1:ssion at.P.O. llox 47866, CJ>11112i_a_,_\/VA 98504-?.1!.?.6-.._. __ . . . _ 

4.3 If F - ·:n1dent does not agree th'.l! the terms and conditions contained in the 

Stipulation to lnf•··;·:;.i: Disposition are appropriate, Respondent should contact Suzanne· 

Mager, Staff Atto:--~y for the Medical Qu<Jlity Assurance Commission, P.O. Box 47866, 

Olympia. \NA9e'''..'.-7l!66, (360) 236-2791wit!1in fourteen (14) days .. 

4.4 If r .-::Jondent does not respond within fou~een (14) days, the Commission 

will assume f~es;"···:Jenl has declined to resolve the allegations by means ofa Stipulation 

to Inform;;! D'c~<cs:;·:m 

4.5 I' R-··''.'·Yldent declines·"to resolve the allegations by means of a Stipulation 

to Informal Disr:·Y ,,. '.' ~ pursuar.t to f~CW 18.1 c".172(2), the C9mmission may proceed t6 

formal disciplic<:r'. ··. ··"·'.1 agJinst Respondent 1.,, filing a Statement of Charges, pursuant 

to RCW 18130.'. ·~;2;. . 
STATEMENT OF . .'• l.f'GATIONS AND SUM.\llARY ~v 
NO. M2015-268 ~ 'V ~;w I 
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4.6 Ti"·~ c~ver letter enclosed with this Statement of Allegations and Summary of 

Evidence was msi~·:d l:i the name and address currently on file for Respondent's license. 

Respondent r:1'.:st r·.oti'y, in writing, the Commission if Respondent's name and/or address 

changes. 

MELANIE DE LEON 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

I deda"e lhal ttis ts; alrue and acctJrala ccpy~ the orlginet on Ile 
vdlh the Washi'iglon Sla111 Oepirtmenl cf He3lh. 

Medlcal~J;~n 
Mlchi!el J. er 

~-1-1& 
D•e 



STATE Or WASHINGTON 
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION 

. In the Matter of the license to Practice 
as a Physician and Surgeon of: 

HERBERT KLOSS, MD 
License No. MDOOD17372 

Res ondent. 

No, M2015·268 

STIPULATION TO INFORMAL 
DISPOSITION 

Pursuant to the Uniform Disciplinary Act, Chapter 1 B.130 RCW, the Medical 

Quality Assurance Commission (Commission) issued a Statement of Allegations and 

Summary of Evidence (Statement of Allegations) alleging the conduct described below. 

Respondent does not admit any of the allegations. This Stipulation to Informal 

Disposition (Stipufatlon) is not formal disciplinary action and shall not be construed as a 

finding of unprofessional conduct, inability to practice, or a practice restriction. 

1. ALLEGATIONS 

1. 1 On May 7, 197g, the State of Washington issued Respondent a license to 

practice as a physician and surgeon. Respondent is board certified in anesthesiology. 

Respondent's license is currently active. 

1.2 Respondent provides anesthesia services for dentists serving pediatric 

patients who require general anesthesia for extensive dental rehabHltation, ?r who have 

special health care needs. Respondent provides ambulatory care and travels to the 

dentists' offices. Respondent administered anesthesia accompanied only by a Nursing 

Assistant-Registered (NAR). 

1 .3 Respondent directed and/or approved the NAR whom he employed to 

pertorm activities beyond the scope of her orectentials, including starting and 

administering IVs, administering intranasal Versed {rnidazolam}, and monitoring patients 

while \hey were under anesthesia. NARs are ineligible fo accept delegation to 

administer meclicine by injection or monitor patients at any time while they are under 

anesthesia. ln addition, NA Rs are required to work under the direction of a Registered 

Nurse or Licensed Practical Nurse, not a physician. 

1.4. During the period De'cember 2011 througf) December 2012, Respondent 

frequently administered anesthesia to one pediatric patient while another pediatric 

STIPUlATION TO INFORMAL DISPOSITION 
NO M2015-268 

ORIGINAL 
PAGE 1 OF7 
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patient was in recovery, wtthout monitoring by .an appropriately licensed or credentialed 

medical care provider. Respondent would hava· his NAR employee or a patient's parent 

monitor one of the patients while Respqndent was in a different room attending to or . 

administering another patient's anesthesia, deaning equipment, or preparing far a 

procedure. 

1.5 Re~pondent would often leave the operating room (OR) when patients 

were under general anesthesia to take telephone c.alis or to use a computer. During 

Respondent's absences from the OR to perform these tasks, RespondE!nt would stand 

outside the door and would leave his NAR \o monitor the patient. 

1.6 ·1n addition to creating a rlsk of patient harm, after August 20, 2012, 

Respondent's actions violated an Agreement Respondent had signed with the 

Department of Social and Health Se/Vices on that date in which he agreed to 

"continuous monitoring of the course of each office based anesthesia administration by 

remaining physically present and available for immediate diagnosing and treatment of 

emergencies." 

2. STIPULATION 

2.1 The Commission alleges that the conduct described above, if proven, 

would constitute a violation of RCW 18.130.180(4)(7)(10) and WAC 246-841405(5)(a). 

2.2 The pnrties wish to resolve this matter by means of a Stipulation to 
Informal Disposition (Stipulation) pursuant to RCW 1 B.130.172{1). 

2.3 Respondent agrees to be bound by the terms and condi~ions of this 

Stipulation. 

2.4 This Stipulation is of no force and effect and is not binding on the parties 

unless and until it is accepted by the Commissio~. 

· 2.5 If the Commission accepts the S1ipulation it will be reported to the National 

Practitioner Data Bank (45 CFR Part 60), the Federation of State Medical Boards' 

Physicfan Data Center and elsewhere as required by law. 

2.6 Tl1e Statement of Allegatlons and this Stipulation are public documents. 

They will be placed on the Department of Health web site, disseminated via the 

Commission's electronic mailing list, and disseminated according to the Uniform 

Disclplinary Act (Chapter 18.130 RCW). They are subject to disclosure under the Public 
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Recor(!s Act. Cl;apter 42.56 RCW, and shall remain part of Respondent's file according 

to the state's records retention law and cannot be expunged. 

2,7 The Commission agrees to forego further disciplinary proceedings 

concerning the allegations. 

2.8 Respondent agrees to succ;essfully complete the terms and conditions of 

this informal disposition. 

2.9 A violation of the provisions of Section 3 of this Stipulation, if proved, 

would constitute grounds for discipline under RCW 18.130.180 and the imposition of 

sanctions under RCl/V 18.130.160. 

3. INFORMAL DISPOSITION 

The Commi$sion and Respondent stipulate to the following terms: 

3.1 Practice Review. Respondent agrees that a representative of the 

Commission wm visit Respondent's office within four months of the effective date of this 

Stipula~'on in _order t::> monitor Respondent's compliance with the Stipulation. 

Respondent agrees that a representative may, at the d_iscretion of the Commission visit 

his oftlce semi-annu;il!y thereafter during the remainder of the term bf this Stipulation to 

monitor Responder.l's compliance. The representative will select, from the 

Re:spondenrs appointment log or other schedule, medical and billing records for al! 

p;;itients on at least five days in the preceding six months. Respondent agrees that the · 

representative ill~::; may interview Respond.en! and Respondent's employees, 

assistants, and bilP~~l staff. Respondent must cooperate w~h \he representative during 

practice reviews oni permit the representative to review and copy patient records and 

billing records. 

3.2 Personol Appearances. Respondent must personally appear before the 

Commission in app:oximately six months, or as soon thereafter as the Commission's 

schedule permits. i"csponder.t will be given the opportunity to make a statement and will be 

asked questions by '.~e Commission. The purpose of personal appearances is to provide 

meaningful oversig!'.\ of Respondent's compliance with the requirements of thl~ Stipulation 

to Informal Oispa"i!'on. Thereafter, Respondent must make personal appearances· until the 

Commissfon term'n:;tes this Stipulation, unless the Commission waives the need for an 

appearance. 
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3_3 -Ethics Course_ Respondent must .:iltend and successfully complete an 

ethics course approved in ad_vance In Writing by the Commission. Respondent must 

-cornpl~te the cour~·= within four months of the effectlv$ dale of this Stipulation. 

Successful_comple!'on means that Respondent must receive an "unconditional pass" at 

the conclusion of tt1 e course. Respondent will provide the course Instructors with a 

copy of this Stipulation prior to the course. Respondent will sign all necessary waivers 

to allow the Commission staff to communicate with the course instructors as needed. 

Respondent will su\J:nit proof of the satisfactory completion of the course to the 

- Commission. If the course Instructors Inform the Commission that Respondent did not 

receive an "uncon'.ii!iona! pass," the Commission will require that Respondent re-take 

the same or similm course. 

3.4 Parti~! Cost Recovery. Respondent must pay $1,000 to the Commission 

as partial relmburs"ment oi some of the casts of investigating and processing this 

matter. Payment n"Jst be by certified or cashier's check made payable to the 

Department of He2'!!i, and must be received by the Department of Health within 90 

days of the effective date of this Stipulation. Respondent _must send payment to: 

Medic-,1-Quality Assurance Commission 
Depar.ment of Health 
P.O. Box 1099 
01\i""r ·i, Washington 98507-1099. 

3.5 Address for ~eports and Other Communication$ with Commission. 

All communications related to this Stipulation must be sent to: 

Cor.1;:;i'ance Officer -
Med' c»I Quality Assurance Commission 
P.O. Box 47866 
O!yrn~ iil, Washington 98504-7866 

3_6 Obe•Llaws. Respondent must obey all federal, state and local laws and 

- all administrative ru:,~s governing the practice of the profession in Washington, including 

those governing the scope of practice of Responden!'s employees and assistants. 

Respondent must practice within the standard of care at_all times. 

3.7 ~-- Respondent must assume all costs of complying with this 

_ Stipulation. 
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3.8 Violations. If Respondent violates any provision of this Stipulation in any 

respect, the Commission may initiate further action against Respondent's license. 

3.9 Chango of Address. Respondent must inform the Commission and the 

AdjudiC8tive Clerk Office in writing, of changes In his residential and/or business 

address within thirty (30) days of such change. 

3.10 Effective Oate. ·The effective date of this Stipulation to Informal 

Disposition Is the da1e the Adjudicative Clerk Office places the signed Stipulation into 

the U.S mall. lf requ!red, Respondent shall not submit any fees or compliance 

document.s until after the effective date of this Stipula!ion. 

3.11 Terminetlon of Stipulation. Respondent may petition the Commission in 

writing to terminate this Stipulation no sooner than 24 months from the effective date of 

th ls Stipulation. Respondent must provide proof that he has fully complied with the 

requirements of this Stipulation. When Respondent files such a petition, a date and 

time will be arranged for Respondent to personally appear before the Commission,. 

unless the Cornmis$lon walv$s the need for appearance. 

4. COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTION RULES 

4.1 The Commission applies WAC 246-16-800, el seq., to determine 

appropriate sanctions. Tier B of the "Practice Below Standard of Ca re" schedule, WAC 

246-16-810, applies to cases where substandard practices created the risk of moderate 

to severe patient harm. Respondent's failure to provide undivided and uninterrupted 

medical supervision ever pediatric patients under anesthesia created the risk of 

moderate to severe h3rm. If an emergency were to occur while two patients were under 

anesthesia, Respondent would n_ot be able to asisist both. Respondent's fallure to 

enforce the scope of practice of his NAR employee also created the risk of moderate to 

. severe patient harm. 

4.2 Tier B r<?quires the imposition of sanctions ranging from two years of 

oversight to five ye::i•s of oversight, unless revocation. Under WAC 246-16·800 (3)(d}, 

the starting point for '.he duration of the sanctions Js the middle of the range. The 

Commission uses a-J·Jravating and mltigating factors to move.towards the maximum or 

minimum ends of the range. 
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4.3 The aggravating and mitigating factors in this case, listed below, justify 

movin·g toward the law .end of the range. The sanctions in this case include an ethics 

course, practice reviP.WS, at least one personal appearance, partial cost recovery and 

other terms to protect the publ'c. 

4.4 These s~nclions are appropriate wlthln the Tier B range given the facts of 

the case and the fol'~·.ving aggravating and mitigating factors: 

II 

II 

II 

If 

JI 

II 

Mitigating: 

4.4.1 Respondent has made changes in his practice to ensure proper 

monitori;1g of patients under anesthesia and to ensure that his agents and 

employees do not exceed the scope of their certification or !\censure. 

4.4.2 F111l and free disclc;>sure to lhe Commission, in that Respondent was 

forthright anrl r."rect in his dealings with the Commission. 

4.4.3 Length of t'me since the alleged acts occurred (having occurred 

over three yca·s ago). 

4.4.4 The Commission ls unaware of any injuries that resulted from 

.Responden~·, ;:illeged conduct. 

Aaaravatin:i: 

4.4.5 The patients under Respondent's care we;e children. 
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5. RESPONDENT'S ACCEPTANCE 

!,HERBERT KLOSS, MD, Respondent, certify that I have read this Stipulation to 

Informal Disposition in its entirety; that my counsel of record, KEVIN. A PECK, has fully 

explained the legal significance and consequence of it; ihat I fully understand and agree 

lo all of it; and that it rnay be presented to the Commission without my appearance. If 

the Commission accepts the Stipulation to Informal Dispo~ition, I understand that I will 

receive a signed copy. 

HERBERT KLOSS, MD . 
. RESPONDENT 

r~--
KEVIN A PECK, WSBA# 12995 
ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT 

DATE 

DATE I ( 

6. COMMISSION'S ACCEPTANCE 

The Commission accepts. this Stipulation to Informal Disposition. All parties shall 

be bound by its terms and conditions. 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION 

PANEL CHAIR 
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